City of Socorro Regular Scheduled City Council Meeting
City Hall, 111 School of Mines Road, Socorro, NM 87801
October 7, 2025

Mayor Bhasker called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL
Leopoldo Pineda, City Clerk, took roll call.

Council members present at roll call:

e Councilor Mary Ann Chavez-Lopez
Councilor Deborah Dean
Councilor Michael Olguin, Jr.
Councilor Joel D. Partridge, Jr.
Councilor Peter Romero
Councilor Anton Salome

Council members absent at roll call:
e Councilor Nick Fleming
e Councilor Damien Ocampo

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Bhasker led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approval of October 8, 2025 City Council Agenda

b. Consideration of Minutes
i.  September 16, 2025

Councilor Romero made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Seconded by Councilor
Dean, motion passed unanimously.

PUBLIC FORUM
a. Socorro High School Cross Country Team
Beth Cadol, Cross-Country Head Coach, expressed her appreciation to the City of Socorro for
constructing and maintaining the Cross-Country Course at the City of Socorro Rodeo and
Sports Complex. She noted that the course is a valuable asset for training purposes and serves
as an excellent facility for hosting cross-country meets. Ms. Cadol also extended her gratitude
to Steve Mathieu, Rodeo and Sports Complex Director, and Raul Contreras, for preparing and
keeping the course in outstanding condition for the Socorro Stampede, held on October 3,
2025.

Ms. Cadol reported that 10 teams participated in the event, with five races conducted and a
total of 190 runners competing. She stated that six Socorro High School runners placed in the
top 10 as follows:

e Kyle Berger, 3™ place, Boys Varsity
e Abby Cadol, 6" place, Girls Varsity
o Sasha Zagrai, 5" place, Girls JV




City of Socorro Regular Scheduled City Council Meeting
City Hall, 111 School of Mines Road, Socorro, NM 87801
October 7, 2025

e Kailyn Woods, 7" place, Girls JV
o Stella Candelaria, 10" place, Girls JV
e Tracer Montoya, 2™ place, Boys Middle School

Ms. Cadol introduced the runners who were present and took a photograph with the City
Council.

b. Zabdiel Aldaz

Mr. Aldaz was not present, but Mayor Bhasker stated that Mr. Aldaz owns a rental house
located on Blue Canyon Road and Parkway. The road is full of boulders and rocks, and four
houses are located at the base of the mountain.

Mr. Aldaz has requested that the city convert the road into a city street and the street be
paved. However, this would require extensive work, and there are other streets in the area that
need attention first. Mayor Bhasker stated that he met with Mr. Aldaz and told him he was
unsure whether the city would be able to take on the project, as there are other roads in greater
need of repair.

The mayor also noted that those residents do not have any city utilities except for garbage
pickup and this may need to be changed, as the condition of the road is damaging our trucks.
He stated that he wanted to provide the Council with background information in case Mr.
Aldaz reaches out.

Mayor Bhasker gave the Council some history of the area, explaining that there was once a
city there due to the presence of a smelter and silver mines. Administrator Monette added that
it was named Park City.

c¢. Jane Anderson
Jane Anderson announced that she is running for the School Board in the upcoming election
and would appreciate everyone’s vote.

ORDINANCES
a. Ordinance No. 25-08-19a — Wastewater Connection Fees
Donald Monette, City Administrator, presented the ordinance and explained that it enacts a
rate structure over three years for residents being served on Evergreen and West Spring Street.
He stated that customers can receive a 10% discount if they pay in monthly installments
during the first year, a 5% discount in the second year, and will pay the full amount thereafter.

Councilor Olguin asked whether participation is required for anyone living on that road.
Administrator Monette replied that, according to city ordinances, connection is required if the
property is within 100 feet of the main line. Councilor Olguin emphasized that the ordinance
applies only to that specific area and not citywide.

Joseph Gutierrez, Municipal Judge, asked whether the 100 feet is measured from the property
line or the residence. Administrator Monette clarified that the distance is measured from the
main line to the property line.




City of Socorro Regular Scheduled City Council Meeting
City Hall, 111 School of Mines Road, Socorro, NM 87801
October 7, 2025

Councilor Partridge made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 25-08-19a. Seconded by
Councilor Romero, Mr. Pineda took a roll call vote, motion passed unanimously.

b. Ordinance No. 25-08-19b — CWSRF 130 — Amend Ordinance No. 23-04-18 & No. 24-
12-17

Administrator Monette presented the ordinance and stated that it proposes an amendment to

the ordinances governing the Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The total amount involved

is $500,000, comprising $400,000 in loan forgiveness and $100,000 as a grant.

Councilor Salome made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 25-08-19b. Seconded by
Councilor Dean, Mr. Pineda took a roll call vote, motion passed unanimously.

DISCUSSION AND DELIBERATION

a. Award — Office of State Auditor Joseph M. Maestas — 2025 City of Socorro Best
Overall Audit — Large Municipalities

The City of Socorro received the best overall audit for large municipalities, Mayor Bhasker
announced. Councilor Olguin noted it is a back-to-back award, alongside large cities like
Albuquerque, and added that five or six communities have not submitted audits in the past
three years. Mayor Bhasker congratulated Finance Director Ruby Lopez and her staff for their
outstanding work.

b. Four Day Work Week

Mayor Bhasker stated that he wanted to bring to the City Council’s attention the idea of
moving to a four-day work week. He added that he understands there are essential services
such as Police, Fire, Gas, Water, and Sewer that must remain on call, but for general staff, the
City could consider a schedule of 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Thursday. This
would mean that some services would not be available on Fridays. The Senior Center and
Landfill would remain on a five-day schedule. Mayor Bhasker noted that the Socorro Electric
Cooperative has already transitioned to a four-day work week.

Councilor Salome asked if someone would be available to answer the phone at City Hall on
Fridays should the City move to a four-day work week. Mayor Bhasker responded that the
City would need to implement a better system so that if residents call and need information—
or if it is an emergency—they would be directed to the appropriate number.

Councilor Salome suggested that perhaps some employees could work Tuesday through
Friday, allowing coverage throughout the week. Mayor Bhasker stated that this has been
considered. Councilor Salome added that residents who call City Hall on Fridays would still
expect someone to answer.

Councilor Partridge echoed Councilor Salome’s concerns and added that he had worked in
places that rotated between Monday—Thursday and Tuesday—Friday schedules. He noted that
employees generally liked the four-day work week but that coverage remained a concern.

Mayor Bhasker stated that it would be beneficial to involve department heads and get their



City of Socorro Regular Scheduled City Council Meeting
City Hall, 111 School of Mines Road, Socorro, NM 87801
October 7, 2025

input. Administrator Monette added that on-call numbers are posted on the City’s website.

Councilor Partridge raised another concern regarding residents who may wish to pay their
bills on Fridays. Finance Director Lopez stated that her department has surveyed the number
of people who visit City Hall on Fridays, and the number is low.

Mayor Bhasker concluded that perhaps two alternatives could be brought back to the Council
for review, along with public input on the matter.

¢. Municipal Ordinance Jurisdiction Advisory Committee Recommendation
Mayor Bhasker stated that the Advisory Committee took a vote and it was 4-3 to keep the
Municipal court.

Councilor Olguin made a motion to except the Municipal Ordinance Jurisdiction Advisory
Committee recommendation to keep the Municipal Court, seconded by Councilor Partridge.

Administrator Monette stated that there are two options: one is to accept the recommendation
and keep the court; the other is to reject the recommendation and still send it to the Supreme
Court.

Mayor Bhasker stated that information was sent to the Councilors indicating that the court
sees a maximum of two cases a day. Therefore, comments suggesting that the Magistrate
Court would have to see more cases would mean only two additional cases per day. He added
that the court is losing $100,000.00 a year and that salaries have increased, so the deficit will
be larger. The Mayor’s opinion is that the Advisory Committee based its decision on
friendship, but the committee was structured as it was and did not really look at the numbers
and facts.

Councilor Olguin stated that the Mayor did not have the numbers either, and that the
committee had no numbers discussed whatsoever in the two meetings. Mayor Bhasker
responded that Judge Gutierrez gave all Councilors a large handout prepared by Chief Clerk
Brittney McDaniel, which outlined all the numbers.

Councilor Olguin replied, “So what? We also discussed city ordinances — how they apply to
Code Enforcement, Animal Control, and Police.” He added that the Committee discussed
some ideas to address those issues and asked if the Council is now working on an ordinance.

Mayor Bhasker stated that the ordinance will not come until the Supreme Court makes its
decision. Councilor Olguin said he took offense to the suggestion that the decision was based
on friendship; it was based on the information the committee had. He added that other
committee members could speak to whether it was based on friendship or not.

Mayor Bhasker stated that information was distributed by both the Judge and Code
Enforcement Officer Chris Carrillo. Councilor Olguin asked the Mayor if he was basing his
opinion only on two numbers — referring to fines — and asked whether the Council had
received a final breakdown of the total fines collected by the city, or reviewed payroll or the




City of Socorro Regular Scheduled City Council Meeting
City Hall, 111 School of Mines Road, Socorro, NM 87801
October 7, 2025

budget, noting that none of that had been done.

Mayor Bhasker replied that the Judge went over how much money each department had
received, and Ms. Lopez provided a budget printout showing the penalties and how much
money the city had lost. He reiterated that his main concern is the budget.

Councilor Olguin asked whether the Council reviews every other department and the
deficiencies within them. Mayor Bhasker replied that each department is reviewed, and if a
department cannot be replaced by a cheaper alternative, then it is kept. If it can be replaced by
something more cost-effective, then it will be. He compared this to the situation with the
County, where the city informed them the City could not continue to provide ambulance
services unless they paid their share.

Mr. Carrillo prepared a detailed report explaining how the city could manage the issue and
how the Municipal Court was necessary, but he also suggested the alternative of having an
administrative hearing officer handle the few cases that appear — roughly two people per day,
or ten per week.

Councilor Salome asked if the Mayor was suggesting that the Municipal Court could be
restructured. Mayor Bhasker replied, “No, | am suggesting that the Municipal Court be
abolished and that an administrative officer be appointed to handle adjudications as needed.
This is currently done in Edgewood, NM.”

Municipal Judge Joseph Gutierrez stated that the numbers being discussed are probably from
last year, covering traffic ordinance citations, code enforcement, and animal cases. He asked
whether the Mayor was looking at the last four years or just the last year, noting that at the
previous City Council meeting it was said that the number of cases has been declining.

Mayor Bhasker stated that Ms. Lopez’s budget figures covered the last ten years, showing
consistent losses. He also referenced the 2,300 citations from Chief Winters and the 883 from
Chief Garcia and noted that while those numbers might help the court break even, the final
decision rests with the Council.

Councilor Olguin then asked if any committee members wished to share their perspective.

J.C. Trujillo stated that one major takeaway from the discussions was the focus on code
enforcement. He added that one significant concern is that abolishing the Municipal Court
would eliminate penalty assessments, which would instead be transferred to the Magistrate
Court. He clarified that the administrative hearing officer model mentioned by the Mayor was
not discussed or explored by the committee — the committee’s task was only to make a
recommendation to either keep the court or send the issue to the Supreme Court.

Mayor Bhasker responded that the penalty assessments are included in the loss calculation, so
even without them, the court still loses $100,000 a year — about $10,000 per month — which
could be used elsewhere.




City of Socorro Regular Scheduled City Council Meeting
City Hall, 111 School of Mines Road, Socorro, NM 87801
October 7, 2025

Police Chief Angel Garcia stated that although some claim the city would lose penalty
assessments, he does not believe that is the case, since those are already paid and processed
by the secretary without the need for a judge. He explained that the city would only lose
revenue from cases that go to court and result in a guilty verdict. Most police citations, he
said, are resolved through penalty assessments and do not require a court appearance.

Judge Gutierrez responded, “yes and no”. If you’re going to see the resolution for the
Magistrate Court to oversee what’s going through the city, it is not going to be pushed to the
Magistrate Court. So, if that’s the case, then the Magistrate Court will receive penalty
assessments based on how they address that. The Magistrate Judge is going to deal with it
whether it’s a county ordinance or a city ordinance.”

Councilor Partridge expressed concern that the court is only hearing two cases according to
the documents, and that the prior judge was part-time at one point. He asked who would have
the authority to make the position part-time. Since the caseload is low, could it be changed to
part-time?

Mayor Bhasker replied that not right now — the way the Municipal Court is run is full-time,
and it may have to wait another four years to make that change.

Councilor Partridge stated that it could be done.
Judge Gutierrez asked Administrator Monette what the ordinance says about caseload.
Administrator Monette stated that it doesn’t include anything on that that he has read.

Judge Gutierrez said it depends on whatever is brought into the court; that determines whether
the judge is full-time or only seeing cases as they come in.

Administrator Monette stated that he would have to review the ordinance, but if the court is
only seeing two cases a day, they could possibly schedule them differently — maybe ten a
day instead of two cases per day.

Judge Gutierrez replied that he agrees, but currently, under the ordinance as it is written, the
number of citations coming into court determines if the judge is full-time or part-time.

Councilor Partridge explained his rationale for the way he is voting: if it’s cited into the court
and it’s a city issue — whether it’s by a police officer, code enforcement officer, or animal
control — those he spoke with feel that having a Municipal Judge gives the city more
authority. It provides an opportunity for those cases to be heard and for someone to place
emphasis on them. Whoever is on the bench, the Municipal Court has value in that regard for
the city.

Councilor Olguin apologized to the Council and the public for his outburst, stating that his
recommendation — based on the committee — would be to have the administration continue
working with the judge or their administrative staff, along with the chief and code



City of Socorro Regular Scheduled City Council Meeting
City Hall, 111 School of Mines Road, Socorro, NM 87801
October 7, 2025

enforcement, and the Council, to review the ordinances and procedures to improve the court
instead of eliminating it.

Councilor Dean said that as a member of the Council, their number one priority is working on
the budget. After speaking with Finance Director Lopez, she noted concerns about the budget
going forward, but stated they always make things work, and whatever direction this goes,
they will make it work.

Mayor Bhasker stated that $100,000.00 comes from gross receipts and the rest from penalty
assessments. He added that there has already been an increase for the Fire and Police
departments — well deserved — of almost $1,000,000.00. He suggested the budget
discussion should happen sooner rather than later.

Councilor Chavez-Lopez stated her opinion that this discussion should have taken place two
to three years ago, not now.

Councilor Salome commented that, based on COVID, the funds that flowed from the federal
government to the big box stores, and the gross receipts received during that stretch of time
when there was no economic growth, created an artificial surge. There was simply money
flooding communities, which spiked inflation and caused prices to rise. He stated, “You throw
$7 trillion into the economy, and you don’t produce an extra alternator — what’s going to
happen? That alternator goes up three times.”

He continued, explaining that what they are facing now is a microcosm of the effects of what
has happened at the federal level over the past five years. Rather than having those gross
receipts taxes at all-time highs, “we were sailing,” but one day that changed — and faster than
expected. “Now we’re faced with a dilemma,” he said, “worried about gross receipts taxes in
the future, based on the effects of the shutdowns and lockdowns that closed businesses —
barbershops and others. Those policies are now affecting us in this Council room and across
the country.”

He added that he knows the administration, the mayor, the council, and the community will
work together to find a way through this, but it may not be easy. When funds flow in without
true economic development generating those gross receipt taxes, “it’s fake,” he said, “and
now we’re seeing what happens when those funds stop flowing.”

He concluded by noting that this is a very difficult decision for both the Council and the
administration. “We set a process in place, and the state set up a process for communities
under 10,000 to relieve themselves from the financial responsibility of a Municipal Court.
Each step was followed by this community, this Council, and this administration. The
committee’s recommendation came from that process as required by statute.”

He added that when reviewing the sign-in sheets, he noticed some days with many people and
others with few, and when the Council first began discussing this, he believed the Municipal
Court might continue because of its value, based on the committee’s findings.




City of Socorro Regular Scheduled City Council Meeting
City Hall, 111 School of Mines Road, Socorro, NM 87801
October 7, 2025

Councilor Romero stated that any decision made tonight must still go through the Supreme
Court, and that process may take years.

Mayor Bhasker informed the Council that New Mexico Tech lost about $52 million in
funding because it shut down some of the carbon sequestration projects in Farmington and

Carlsbad, New Mexico.

Mr. Pineda took a roll call vote to accept the committee’s recommendation of keeping the
Municipal Court.

Voting in favor:

e Councilor Chavez-l.opez
Councilor Dean
Councilor Olguin
Councilor Partridge
Councilor Salome

Voting against:
e Councilor Romero

Motion passed

d. Resolution No. 25-10-07a — FY27 Funding of a Public Transportation System
Administrator Monette presented the resolution, which, if approved, would fund the
Transportation Department through the 5311 Transportation Program, funded by the New
Mexico Department of Transportation and the federal government.

Councilor Salome made a motion to approve Resolution No. 25-10-07a. The motion was
seconded by Councilor Chavez-Lopez, motion passed unanimously.

e. Resolution No. 25-10-07b — LGRF Time Extension Request — Courthouse Streets
Administrator Monette presented the resolution, which, if approved, would extend the due
date to December 31, 2026. The contractor is scheduled to begin the project this month, but
our engineers felt that, in case of bad weather or other unforeseen circumstances, we should
request an extension that expires on December 31, 2025.

Councilor Partridge made a motion to approve Resolution No. 25-10-07b. Seconded by
Councilor Dean, motion passed unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS

Mayor Bhasker informed the Council that the City was successful in obtaining a grant for a
housing feasibility study through the Thriving Communities program. The grant will include both
the City of Socorro and Socorro County. Lena Chavez, Assistant City Administrator, explained
that the City received a survey from Roots Policy, which is currently active on My Civic Link and
posted in the window of City Hall. Residents can scan the QR code to participate. The housing




City of Socorro Regular Scheduled City Council Meeting
City Hall, 111 School of Mines Road, Socorro, NM 87801
October 7, 2025

study aims to identify community needs, and participants who complete the survey will be entered
into a drawing for $100.00.

Councilor Dean inquired how the survey will reach residents outside of the City. Ms. Chavez
responded that the schools, New Mexico Tech, and the City’s websites will help share the
information.

Administrator Monette reported that the Middle Rio Grande Economic Development Association
(MRGEDA) received a grant to develop an economic development master plan. Councilor Olguin
added that the New Mexico Finance Authority has awarded $75,000.00 for the development of the
City of Socorro Economic Development Plan. The City will work with MRGEDA to complete the
plan within an 18-month timeframe. Administrator Monette stated that MRGEDA Director Kirstin
Keller has identified four or five potential vendors the City could contract with to carry out the
plan.

Councilor Partridge reported that he, Councilor Dean, and the Planning and Zoning department
met last week. Their focus was on obtaining funds to update the city’s map of property lines and
zoning areas. Councilor Partridge explained that updated maps would support economic
development by providing clear information about the city’s properties, as the current maps are
unclear and visually unappealing. Kristy Padilla, Planning and Zoning Manager, stated that Lloyd
Martinez, General Services Director, has been in discussions with Dennis Engineering regarding
the development of a new map. Administrator Monette added that the Thriving Communities grant
would also provide the city with a GIS system, allowing mapping not only of streets but also of the
utilities beneath them.

Linda Mares, Senior Center Director, reported that the Fall Barbecue was held at the City’s
Veguita Senior Center and thanked the mayor for sponsoring the entertainment. Upcoming events
include the Halloween Dance, Thanksgiving Dinner, and a December Dance at the Socorro Center.
Mayor Bhasker noted that the Veguita Center is a Socorro County building and that a propane gas
line was installed right next to the electrical service box. Socorro Electric Cooperative, during a
meeting at the building, discovered this issue. The City is covering the cost to fix the problem,
even though the building belongs to the County.

Councilor Partridge announced that a free wrestling camp for children is scheduled for this
weekend at Finley Gym.

Councilor Salome stated that several great events took place last weekend, including the Hammel
Museum’s Oktoberfest, the San Miguel Fiestas, and the Chile Festival and Taste-Off. There was
something to do for everyone from Friday through Sunday.

Cheyenne Cortez, Tourism Director, informed the Council that Socorrofest will take place this
coming Friday and Saturday on the Plaza. The Dreamboats will be the headliners, performing on
Saturday night.

Councilor Salome asked Michael Lucero, Landfill & Sanitation Director, about a tire shredding
program. Mr. Lucero stated that a tire shredder would need to be purchased and could then be used




City of Socorro Regular Scheduled City Council Meeting
City Hall, 111 School of Mines Road, Socorro, NM 87801

October 7, 2025

to cover the landfill cells.

OLD BUSINESS

Mayor Bhasker reported that as of January they predict a 10% increase in insurance and are not
sure what will happen when the Big Beautiful Bill takes effect. The insurance premium is currently
approximately $2,300.00 for a family plan and the city pays 80%.

Mayor Bhasker reported that a meeting was held today regarding mediation on the Socorro Electric
Cooperative’s rate case with the New Mexico Public Regulation Commission. Another meeting is
scheduled for October 31, 2025, and is expected to be the final one. These meetings concern the
penalty Socorro Electric incurred from the Commission.

Councilor Partridge asked for an update on the traffic lights at the corner of California and Otero
Streets. Mayor Bhasker stated he would get an update from Mr. Martinez in the morning.

Councilor Partridge asked when people and start hooking up sewer for the Evergreen Project.
Administrator Monette stated people can call at any time to get on the schedule.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

None

MAYOR’S REPOR

a. Description

i. Production — Producti i Collection F
Councilor Olguin Made a motion to approve the job description. Seconded by Councilor
Chavez-Lopez, motion passed unanimously.

b. Personnel Changes

Councilor Partridge motioned to approve the Personnel Changes as presented by Mayor

Bhasker.
NAME EFFECTIVE DEPARTMENT REASON SALARY
Alfredo Alvarado | 10/07/2025 | Water Full Time Hire A-37
Felix Saavedra 10/07/2025 | Production Completed Water Supply 2 V-56 to V-58
David Montoya 10/06/2025 | Landfill Promotion to Operator lll L-33 to L-57
Justin Lopez 10/02/2025 | Animal Shelter Termination

Seconded by Councilor Salome, motion passed unanimously.

c. Business Registrations

Councilor Partridge motioned to approve the Business Registrations as presented by Mayor

Bhasker.

NAME

ZONING ADDRESS

OWNER

TYPE

Exceed Construction LLC

Out of Town | Albuquerque, NM

Juan Terrazas

Commercial &
Residential Construction

Driver’s Program

G Bar 8 LLC dba Go Green

Out of Town San Antonio, NM

Kenneth Gonzales

Driver’s Education
Correspondence School

Back Porch Properties LLC | C-2

203 Manzanares

Jim Burleson

Rental Real Estate




City of Socorro Regular Scheduled City Council Meeting
City Hall, 111 School of Mines Road, Socorro, NM 87801
October 7, 2025

[ Ink Underground ‘ Cc-2 ‘ 124 A Manzanares ‘ Jacalyn Lesperance ‘ Tattoo Parlor

Seconded by Councilor Chavez-Lopez, motion passed unanimously.

d. Announcement — Next City Council Meeting Dates and Times

Mayor Bhasker stated that the next regular City Council meeting will be held Tuesday,
October 21, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers (111 School of Mines Rd.).

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 7:08 p.m.

THE C ITK)F S()C()ﬁ[{(-) — a municipal corporation

Ravi Bha&ker, Mayor

)

ATIEQSE ’ 2
Xty el

Leopdldo Pineda, City Clerk




